Our Cockshutt Family Story

The Flack — Cockshutt branches of our family tree are very much connected with the history of North
East Lancashire and Western Yorkshire. My Great Uncle Edmund Cockshutt (my grannie Flack’s
brother) was likely the last of the family to be engaged in weaving industries in the north East of
England, but research into the Cockshutt family tree shows that Cockshutts have been a part of the
industry back to the cottage industries of the 17" Century. Uncle Edmund and Aunty Freda had no
children, so our Cockshutt line ends with Uncle Edmund but the story lives on through the Flack line.

Before exploring the Cockshutt family tree, It is interesting to learn something about the origins of
the Cockshutt surname, because, despite the family tradition this was derived from the weaver’s
task of threading the “cock” through the loom, the most authoritative explanation is that it is
derived from the old English word for a bird trap established in woodland glades. Such “cockshutts”
were used in mediaeval times to capture pheasants. Nets were erected in natural passage-ways
through the trees, narrowing to a netting bag at the end of the trap. Dogs were used to scare the
pheasants towards the glade and the capture in the net at the end. The land holders of such facilities
often came to be known by the name of their occupation and the valuable trap they controlled. It is
perhaps no coincidence that just outside of Colne, around which the Cockshutt family was living back
into the pre-modern era, there is a Cock Hill Farm with a “v” shaped valley up the side of a hill on the
farm. Is it possible that this is where the “cockshutt would have been erected?

Census Records

Uncle Edmund’s father, another Edmund Cockshutt (born 1862 in Preston, Lancashire) is recorded in
the 1901 Census as an “Insurance Agent” living with his wife Emily, aged 36 and daughter Margaret
M, aged 9, son Edmund M, aged 7, along with a “Domestic Nurse” and a “General Servant” at 91
Bakerhouse Road, Nelson. The neighbourhood in Nelson must have been sought after, as the family
neighbours included William Jackson, a Barrister-at-Law and a Harry Clark “Cotton Manufacturer and
employer” both of who employed at least two household servants.

1891 census records the family living at 100 Brownedge Lane, Walton-le-Dale, at which time
Edmund Cockshutt (b 1862) is recorded as as an “employer” and “Cotton manufacturer”, living with
his wife Emily, aged 27 and daughter Alice, aged 1 along with a “Domestic servant” and a “Servant
Nurse”, Walton-le-Dale lies on the south bank of the River Ribble, opposite the city of Preston,
adjacent to Bamber Bridge, where daughter Alice was born.


http://goo.gl/fwclX3
http://goo.gl/jIu56u
http://goo.gl/jIu56u
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/River_Ribble
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/City_of_Preston,_Lancashire
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bamber_Bridge

Copy of 1891 census
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Edmund Cockshutt’s (b.1862) father was Joshua Cockshutt (born 1840 at Preston) and his mother
was Margaret Hayes. Joshua Cockshutt’s family is recorded in the 1871 Census as living at 33 East
View, Preston.” (no longer in existence). Joshua Cockshutt, aged 31, was recorded as an
“Ironfounder” employing 8 men and 4 boys. In the house on census day were Margaret aged 29,
Edmund, aged 9, Nicholas, 7 and Joshua aged 1. Mary, aged 17, a General Servant Domestic born in
Ireland, was also resident. The neighbourhood in Preston was modest middle class with small
business people as the Cockshutt’s neighbours.

Ten years later, the 1881 Census shows Joshua Cockshutt, aged 41, a “Cotton Spinner (employing
about 100 hands)” was resident at 19 Bairstow Street, Preston. Resident were Margaret, his wife,

aged 39, Edmund, son, aged 19, a “Pupil to Cotton Spinner”, Mary, daughter, aged 4. Margaret,
daughter aged 5 months, and two servants, Ann Harrison, “Nursery Servant” and Mary Chippendale,
“General Servant”. The neighbourhood is more prosperous than their address in 1871, with medical
practitioners and the Head Master at the Grammar School as neighbours.

In the 1841 Census, Joshua is recorded living at Saul Street, Preston with his parents Edmund
Cockshutt, aged 30, “J.Mechanic” and Betty Cockshutt, aged 20 with Mary, aged 7, Elizabeth, aged 3
and Joshua aged 1. Also living with them were James Ashton, aged 70 and Betty Ashton, aged 65.
Edmund Cockshutt and Elizabeth Ashton were married at St Johns, Preston on 9 February 1833.
James and Betty Ashton were Betty Cockshutt’s parents.

Saul Street is no longer a residential street but the Cockshutt’s neighbours, recorded in the 1841
Census, suggest that their neighbours tended to be tradespeople.

Church records

Edmund Cockshutt (b.1810) was the son of another Edmund Cockshutt (c. 26 September 1779 at St
Bartholemew’s Church, Colne, Lancashire) and Betty Herrin (c.1773) who were married at St Peter’s
Bolton on 7 November 1804.

Edmund Cockshutt (c.1779) was the son of Edmund Cockshutt (c.1753) and Thomasin Walker (b.unk)
who were married in 1777 at Waddington, Yorkshire. Edmund Cockshutt was known as Edmund
Cockshutt of Bell Grove. He may have been married more than once and his second wife may have
been Margery Maude whom he married on 9 July 1795 at Great Harwood, Lancashire.

Edmund Cockshutt of Ball Grove (c.1773) was probably the son of John Cockshutt “of Longroyd” c.
11 October 1753 at St Bartholemew’s Church, Colne, Lancashire.

It is likely that John Cockshutt had an uncle or cousin also named Edmund Cockshutt of “Longrode”
who was buried at St Bartholemew’s Colne on 4 August 1747.

Edmund Cockshutt of Ball Grove is reported to have had as many as twelve children, many of whom
share the names found in subsequent generations, making it difficult to be sure that the line of
ancestry described above is correct.


http://goo.gl/7494t5

Other sources — Nicholas Cockshutt’s Pedigree

Apart from the official birth death and marriage records. The census records and the Parish records
available of the various family history databases, there are two other sources of information about
the Cockshutts. The first is a typed document entitled “The Cockshutt Pedigree” “made by Nicholas
Cockshutt, Solicitor, formerly of Preston, Lancashire and now of Guilford Surrey.” In that document,
apart from recording the pedigree, the author states that Edmund of Ballgrove “possessed the
following properties:

Ballgrove Estate,

Emot Lane Estate,

Cotton Mills in Boulgh Gap in the Forest Trawden,
Angram Green Estate at Worston,

Warsaw Hill Estate,

Howarth Estate,

Lawkland, in the County of York, etc.”

Using available on-line resources, the following comments are offered as probable explanations of
the “properties” referred to in Nickolas Cockshutt’s pedigree.

. Ballgrove Estate, was probably the farm to the East of Colne which is now a public park;

. Emot Lane Estate, was possibly located off the present Emmott Lane to the East of Colne off
Keighley Rd;

. Cotton Mills in Boulgh Gap in the Forest Trawden, were probably located in or adjacent to

adjacent to what is now Bow Gap Farm, located on the edge of what was Forest Trawden. It is
possible that the (pre-industrial) cotton mills referred to were driven by the fast-flowing
streams on the northern boundary of the farm;

. Angram Green Estate at Worston was probably somewhere near where now stands Angram
Green Farmhouse, near Clitheroe. Worston was an area North West of Pendle Hill close to
Clitheroe;

. Warsaw Hill Estate probably located near Chatburn or Downham, close to the foot of Pendle
Hill;

. “Howarth Estate” may refer to a property in or near the village of Haworth, in West Yorkshire.

It may be a coincidence, but at the funeral of William Henry Douglas Flack in 1935, father-in-
law of Alice Flack, nee Cockshutt, a Dr and Mrs Haworth were present. Is it possible the
spelling was inaccurate in Nicholas Cockshutt’s account of the Cockshutt “pedigree”?);

° Share of Mill at Halham Dale, York is a possible reference to Malham Dale, located just over
the border in West Yorkshire, although no reference can be found to there ever having been a
mill in the area. It is however famous for its limestone, much in demand for the mortar used in
building construction and agriculture;

. Shares in the Leeds and Liverpool Canal and,

. Halifax Cloth Hall. It will be noted that the Halifax Cloth Hall or “Piece Hall” as it was known
was an important pre-industrial centre for the marketing of hand woven cloth.

. Lawkland, in the County of Yorkshire is probably a reference to a property in the civil parish in

North Yorkshire which is known for the historic Lawkland Hall . There is no village as such
although there are several clusters of houses and farms, any of which could have been owned
or leased by Edmund Cockshutt.


http://goo.gl/sxRQuR
http://goo.gl/TLaT3m
http://goo.gl/EZZXrj
http://goo.gl/EZZXrj
http://goo.gl/ysxEzj
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lz-0LQ4pvkg
http://www.haworth-village.org.uk/
https://www.google.com.au/maps/@54.061282,-2.152982,3a,52.4y,110.35h,79.34t/data=!3m4!1e1!3m2!1sKzN4jJ2f6KUfKR8_qf4gXQ!2e0?hl=en
http://goo.gl/hfpcyc
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Halifax_Piece_Hall
http://www.hha.org.uk/Property/568/Lawkland-Hall

Directory listing dated 1824

COLNE.

621

—_ —

POST MASTER, Mr. Epnuwnp RiLsv-—Office, Market-Street.—Letters arrive from Skiptos,

York, Leeds, &c. every mig. at 6, and are

despatched at half-past 11 mg.; and from Bumley,

Blackburn, Preston, and Manchester, at half-past 11 mg. snd are despatched at 5 minutes
past 6 moming.—Office opeéns for the Delivery of Letters at 6 morning.

DIRECTORY.

MiscELLANY—Consisting of the Names of the Inhabitants not arranged In the Trades' Listd,
with the Residences of the Gentry, Clergy and Manufacturers.

Alexander Mary, gentlewoman, Church st.
Ashworth Edmund, flannel mfr. Helr’s house
Asquith Wm. deputy constable and Inspector of
welights and measures for the Higher Divi-
sion of Blackburn, Colne lane
Ayrton Henry, smallware dealer, Water side
Barcroft Misses, gentlewomen, Park house
Beltt Anthony, excise officer, Shackleton street
Calvert Rev. John, East parade
Carr James Bulcock, Esq. Langroyd hall
G ick Rev. Th Coloe lane
Chester Robért, overlooker, Market street
Cockshutt Edward, gent, Ball grove
Conyers Ann, sub-distributor of stamps, and
keeper of the Cloth hall
Cowgill Jas. veterinary surgeon, Priestficld
Driver Jas. governor of the Workhouse, Flass
Dyson Robert, heald yamn mfr. Church street
Ellls James, Chapelry clerk, Church street
Emmott John, organist, Lister street
England Nicholas, spinner & mfr.; h. Clayton st.
Garth Thomas, Shackleton street
GIll James, wood turner, Market place
Greenwood James, gent.
Harrison Lieut. S, East parade
Hartley John, String lane
Henderson Rev. John, perpd. Curate, Colne In.
Horner Rt. loom mkr. & furniture dir, Clayton st.
Hudson Mry. Sarah, East parade
Lambert John, collector of poors’ rate & water
money, Dockray square

Landless Wim. coal proprietor, Carry Aeys

Leach Jane, gentlewoman, East parade

Lister Elizabeth, gentwn. Parliament street

Midgley Robert, hat mfr.; h. Esst parade

Morrell Margaret, keeper of the Subscription
library, Church street

Parker Miss Elizabeth, Aikincoales

Liverpool Canal Co. Fowlridge

Reynolds Robert, Esq. Heir's house

Robinson John, gent. Park house

Robinson Rev, Thomas, Infack

Sagar Lucy, gentlewornan, East Parade

Sagar Ostes, gent. Market street

Smith Martin, gent. Nether heys

Smith Thomas, gent. Nether heys

Tillotson Rt atty. ; h. Horsfleld cottage, E. parade

Walker Richard, String lane

Walton Ambrose, bookkeeper, Partiament street

Whitaker John, desler in worsted & stufl’ goods,
Water side

Wilkinson Ann, gentlewoman, St. John street

Wilkinson Elizabeth, gentwn. Dockray sq.

Wilkinson Henry, hat mfr.; h. Colne lane .

Wilkinson Joséph, inspector of raw hides, Mar-
ket street

Wilson James, Esq. Hey royd

Crankshaw, colton
lor of this to
l!lhn‘ntb

DEATHS.

10th instant, Mrs, Crankshaw, relict of the late Mr,
spinner,

s hron Lol el 5
ug..?‘:;‘am” R,

Joalﬂ, mdm.mm

Death Notice for Joshua Cockshutt, at 16 weeks old, son of Joshua Cockshutt in the Preston
Chronical dated 14 December 1867

und eldest daughtor of

of that desomiuation in




Dissolution of Partnership

Notice of dissolution of partnership in Preston Chronical dated September 1845

| Were K0IIET, AN KEBIEBCCH (0 LWENLY-H0IFS IMPrEONMAnt for
eatempt of eourt. I
E————EIIess———_—_———. v

Bankrupts.

T, Davles, Liverpool, morehant, October 4 and Navember 18, at
half.pant tweelye, at tho Court of Dankeuptny, Liverpoal, Me, J.
Cazanove, offichl masignes, Liverpool; Atts, Messrz, Salo and Co., so.
Ueitars, Maschestor,

J. Swallow, Manchestér, dare broker, October 15amd November T,
ot twelve, st the Court of Danktuptey, Manchester, Mr. it P Hob.
wcn, oflicial assignce, Manchotter; Atte, Mosses, Sale and Co., Man.
chestar.

W, L, Tall Liverpoel, victualler, Octaber 17 aud Novembor 13,
at the Comrt of Bankroptey, Liverpoel. Nr, G. Mergan, offickl
anignee, Liverpool; At Mr, C, Graen, Livemool,

W. Staye, Flastock, Oxfordshire, baker—, i1 Limes, Tichoorl,
Sxrroy, Lntchor—it. M'Rotire, ¥ o, and of I bury.
weuare, comnnbesion aront—T, Winsten, Copihall.bulitogs, Londe:
meechant—J. Middleton, Aveley, Esex, bay slosman—t, Mortimer,

Adelaldo.street, West Strand, bookseller— 3. Lavrence, Hedfoed.
strect, Covent-garden, desler In watelies—W, G, Thackway, Unica.
oo, New.rosd, Marylebone, tallor,

DIVIDENDS TO BE DECLARED IN LANCASHIRE,

T, Brewer, Liverpool, fag dealor, October 3-8, Mead, Liverpool,
Irin merchant, Ootober Sw-J, Knighit, Wigon nad Laydoek, buteher,
Ostober 30,

CERTIFICATES IN LANCASIIRE,
T be granted, undess cause bo shown (o0 the vontrary, on the day
of mecting,

D, Dames, Liverpool, paper sealner, Ostoler 30—J, Bannlag, Li.
verpaod, stationer Gctober 20,

OERTIFICATES 1IN LANCASIUINIE,
‘I3 be granted by the Court of Roview, unlesy causo be shown to the
contrary, en or before Octobir 24,

¥. Bpomear, Juwi., Liverposl, biullder— G, Lawrle, Flectwood upen-
Wyre, chemnést—D], AMen, St. Ilelen's, butebes—J, M. Nelsor, Liver.

o), nl A

PARTNERSIHIFS DISSOLVED IN LANCASHIRE,

Edmund Cockshutt and Williun Lowe, Preston, Lancaslire, iron
founders,

T. Tlerrepont ond J. Mamden, JAverpool wiich Jowellers—T,
Slokes awil Hon, Staleyhiridge, joiners—V, B. Lumb, and W, R. .
ror, Rochidale, mizgeons—11, Wilon and R, W. Nean Manchester,
yien merchants— Worthington, Som, and Judd, Manchester, ealico
printers; o far as cegards J, Judd-—J, Harnes and T, Morner, Man.
ehestor, Hour fctors—l'latl, Gonrlay, aml Co, Liverpoel, wino mor.
elnunts; %o ¥or aa regands 7', Flatt—J. Uall and B, flall, Salford, small
wire imanodacturers—T, (3, Shaw, W, W, Hlexp, W. Maxwall, ond J,
B, Windle, Manchester, and Saltibury-atroet, Strand, Londen, wine
merchants ; so far os rogards W, 11, Waiker—F, A, Fyancy and J,
W. Adaeis, Manchiester, stock brokers—E. Shopley and J, Swaln,
Tigleae by, Ashituseumders Lyne, fiobilek maders,

—

The Cockshutt Tractors connection

In a Canadian publication “Memaoirs of Ignatius Cockshutt: Consisting chiefly of his own
reminiscences”, published in Brentford, Ontario in 1903, the author refers to Ignatius Cockshutt
being born in Yorkshire on 24 August 1812 the son of a James Cockshutt who was in business with a
cousin, Joshua Cockshutt in a company known as J & J Cockshutt, before emigrating to Canada. The
family story told was that business declined and James abandoned the business and went to live on
a farm owned by his grandfather Edmund Cockshutt at Worsaw Hill near Clitheroe, Lancashire. The
author explains that Edmund Cockshutt “who was the real head of the Cockshutt family, and was a
man of considerable importance in the district to which he belonged. He was a manufacturer and
landowner as well having estates in the Counties of Yorkshire and Lancashire.”

The following is an extract from a biography of Henry Cockshutt in which the author is discussing the
life of Henry's father Ignatius Cockshutt, son of James Cockshutt and Mary Nightingale.

Ignatius emigrated to Canada with his father and mother from Lancashire in July 1827.
James Cockshutt was the son of Edmund Cockshutt of Bell Grove’s and brother of the
Edmund Cockshutt, born 1779 in the Flack-Cockshutt family tree.



Throughout his life Cockshutt devoted considerable time and money to Christian
philanthropy. He belonged to a Methodist sect, the Inghamites or Independents, which had
originally flourished in Yorkshire and Lancashire. His father [James Cockshutt] had founded
two congregations in Upper Canada, the first in York, which did not thrive, and the second in
Brantford. Its evangelical doctrines were demanding, and Ignatius Cockshutt, who remained
an Inghamite throughout his life, refused to let faith rest easily upon him. As he wrote to a
relative, “The great matter for all to earnestly consider [is] how do | stand in the sight of the
Lord. Am I resting on the sure Rock Christ trusting alone in his precious Blood [and] finished
work for sinners like you [and] me.” His religious convictions required him to engage in
charity work and evangelism. “We are commanded to do good to all as we have opportunity
especially the household of faith,” he explained to a correspondent. In 1887 he donated land
and 510,000 for the Brant County House of Industry. Other agencies in Brantford, the
Woman’s Christian Temperance Union, the Young Men’s Christian Association, and the
Young Women'’s Christian Association, received substantial donations. As well, he established
the Widow’s Home in Brantford and, with Thomas Strahan Shenston*, the Brantford
Orphan’s Home, the operation of which Cockshutt took over entirely in 1879. He also sent
money regularly to Dr Thomas John Barnardo for work with destitute children in Britain and
volunteered to find situations locally for child immigrants. His major commitment, however,
was to support one mission in Jamaica entirely and another partially.

Cockshutt had an austere personality, emanating from his religion and work ethic, and
expressed in the patriarchal discipline he exerted over his children, nine of whom survived
childhood. Loans to his sons when they embarked in business were painstakingly recorded
and fully secured. In 1890 he lectured the fiancé of his daughter Elizabeth on matrimonial
finances, couching his disapproval of their marriage settlement in no uncertain terms.
William Foster* suffered particularly from being his father’s son. Ignatius did not approve of
his choice for a wife, refused to sanction the marriage, and, when William would not listen,
had local doctors declare him mentally unstable and packed him off to an asylum at
Canandaigua, N.Y., until he gave in to his father’s wishes. It is hardly a wonder that the
children at times believed he displayed more interest in his dogs, for whom he felt great
affection, than in them. William nevertheless went on to become a noted mp and exponent
of imperial free trade, while another son, Henry* (Harry), gained prominence in
manufacturing and as a lieutenant governor of Ontario.

Discipline, rooted in his faith and demonstrated in his relations with his children,
characterized Ignatius Cockshutt’s success in business. Careful attention to his undertakings
earned him a fortune. Perhaps because Brantford’s size limited the prospects for growth of
any mercantile venture, Cockshutt diversified his business interests and from the 1870s made
significant investments in local manufacturing.

The Inghamite Connection

Perhaps another interesting aspect of the Cockshutt family history is the connection with the
Inghamite Church, an “independent” branch of the Methodist Church, much influenced by the
Presbyterians. James Cockshutt, brother of the Edmund Cockshutt in our family line, was an Elder of
the Inghamite Church and helped establish the Winewall Inghamite Chapel.



Portrait photograph of Ignatius Cockshutt

This photo was found in a book in the Baldwin collection of the Toronto Reference Library, part of
the Shenston Collection detailing the early history of the Girl's Home on Sheridan St, Brantford
property Ignatius had donated

Portrait photograph of Nightingale Cockshutt nee Ingham



Drawing of James Cockshutt b.c1775




